
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 

BOARD MEMBERSHIP 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please contact Caroline Halpin on 0151 471 7394or e-mail 
caroline.halpin@halton.gov.uk  for further information. 
 
The next meeting of the Board is on Wednesday, 30 June 2010 
 

Business Efficiency Board 
 
Wednesday, 26 May 2010 at 6.30 p.m. 
Committee Room 1, Runcorn Town Hall 

Public Document Pack



ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH 
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
Part l 

 
Item No. Page No. 
  
1. MINUTES 
 

 

2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
  

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
personal or personal and prejudicial interest which they have in 
any item of business on the agenda, no later than when that 
item is reached and, with personal and prejudicial interests 
(subject to certain exceptions in the Code of Conduct for 
Members), to leave the meeting prior to discussion and voting 
on the item. 
 

 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY OFFICERS 
 

1 - 3 

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE 2009/10 ABSTRACT OF 
ACCOUNTS 

 

4 - 21 

5. PROGRESS WITH IMPLEMENTATION OF INTERNATIONAL 
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS) 

 

22 - 26 

PART II 
  

 

SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AND 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 
1985 
 
In this case the Board has a discretion to exclude the press and 
public and, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, it 
is RECOMMENDED that under Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, having been satisfied that in all the 
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for 
the following item of business on the grounds that it involves the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act. 
 

 

6. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT - QUARTER 4 
(2009/10) 

 

27 - 92 

7. INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT - 2009/10 
 

93 - 102 

 



 
In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is 
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation 
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and 
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block. 



REPORT TO: Business Efficiency Board 
 
DATE: 26 May 2010 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director – Resources 
 
SUBJECT: Declarations of Interest by Officers 
  
WARDS Boroughwide 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To provide the Board with an update about Declaration of Interests 

arrangements which apply to all Officers of the Council in order to 
maintain the values of good governance and ethical behaviour. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That the Board notes the Report 
 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Members of the Board may remember receiving a detailed report on 

Declarations of Interests and Registration of Gifts and Hospitality at 
its meeting on 3rd June 2009. 

 
3.2 It is not the intention to repeat the information contained in that 

report, but it is worth reminding Members that there is a specific 
duty under Section 117 of the Local Government Act 1972 providing 
that it comes to the knowledge of an Officer employed by a local 
authority that a contract in which he or she has any financial interest 
has been or is proposed to be entered into by the Authority, he or 
she must as soon as practicable give notice in writing to the 
Authority of the fact.  Failure to do so is a criminal offence. 

 
3.3 Furthermore it is also an offence for Officers to receive within their 

office or employment any fee or reward other than proper 
remuneration. 

 
3.4 The Officers’ Code of Conduct within  the Constitution contains 

detailed provisions concerning these matters.  It is the personal 
responsibility of Officers to ensure proper declarations, and of 
course there is a vital need to ensure public confidence in local 
government. 

 
3.5 The only exception to the general rule about Officers not accepting 

gifts or hospitality relates to small gifts of nominal value, for 
example inexpensive calendars, diaries, etc.  Any hospitality given 
or received by Officers must be justified in the public interest and 
should be proportionate to the occasion.  Offers of hospitality must 
be refused where a suggestion of improper influence is possible. 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



 
3.6 Each Chief Officer is required to maintain a Gifts and Hospitality 

Register showing what gifts / hospitality has been offered, to whom 
and by whom, when, with whom the offer was discussed, and 
whether or not the offer was accepted. 

 
3.7 The Officer Registers of Gifts and Hospitality are held in each of the 

Council’s Strategic Directorates.  The Officers responsible for their 
maintenance are set out in the table below:- 

 
DEPARTMENT MAINTAINING OFFICER 
Resources Angela Scott – Principal Committee 

Services Officer 
Environment & 
Economy 

Mick Noone – Operational Director 
Highways, Transportation and 
Logistics 

Adult & Community  Jayne Cumpper – Senior Financial 
Services Officer 

Children & Young 
People 

Margaret Musson – Senior Planning 
& Communications Manager 

 
3.8 The Monitoring Officer has made contact with each of the keepers 

of the Registers, and there is evidence of good practice in 
Directorates, including regularly updated registers and reminders 
being sent out to staff.   

 
3.9 It is important that employees are reminded of the duties on a 

regular basis to ensure compliance. 
 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None 
 
5.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
5.1 Ready to comply with the principles outlined in the Report could 

result in Officers being in breach of the Code and / or their 
Contracts of Employment and may amount to a criminal offence. 

 
6.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS  
 
6.1 None 
 
7.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES  
 
7.1 None 
 
8.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

Page 2



8.1 None 
 

Page 3



REPORT TO: Business Efficiency Board 
 
DATE: 26 March 2010 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Operational Director – Finance 
 
SUBJECT: Accounting Policies for the 
  2009/10 Abstract of Accounts 
 
WARD(S): Borough-wide 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To inform the Board of the accounting policies to be used when 

preparing the Council’s Statement of Accounts (The Abstract). The 
report also highlights some key changes arising from the annual 
Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) and the phased 
implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), 
and indicates where these will affect the 2009/10 Abstract. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDED: That 
 

(1) the Council’s accounting policies set out in Appendix 1, be 
endorsed; 

 
(2)  the impact of updates to the Statement of Recommended 

Practice outlined in Section 5, be noted. 
   

3.0 BACKGROUND 
  
3.1 The Council’s Abstract must comply with the requirements of the Code 

of Practice on Local Authority Accounting – A Statement of 
Recommended Practice (SORP).  The SORP is amended annually for 
changes in statute and accounting practice. It seeks to ensure that all 
Councils compile their accounts in a consistent manner.     

 
4.0 BASIS FOR THE COUNCIL’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
4.1 Accounting policies are the principles and practices applied by the 

Council to reflect how its financial transactions are shown in its records 
and statements.  The Council’s Accounting Policies are based on the 
requirements of the SORP, which in turn reflect the fundamental 
principles of UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP). 

 
4.2 These principles require that the Council’s accounting statements 

should ensure relevance, reliability, comparability, materiality and be 
understandable. In addition, there are three general concepts that 
underpin the financial statements and each of the individual accounting 
policies:  

Agenda Item 4Page 4



 

• Accruals: Costs and income are accounted for when goods and 
services are utilised, rather than when cash is paid or received. 

 

• Going Concern: The accounts assume that the Council will continue 
in existence for the foreseeable future and that there is no intention 
to significantly reduce operations. 

 

• Primacy of Legislative Requirements: Where there is a conflict 
between specific legislative requirements and accounting principles, 
then legislative requirements are applied. 

  
5.0 CHANGES TO THE 2009/10 SORP 
 
5.1 The 2009/10 SORP includes a number of changes that will affect the 

content of the 2009/10 Abstract. These are summarised below.  Full 
details of the resultant accounting policies that will be used to prepare 
the Council’s 2009/10 accounts, are attached at Appendix 1. 

  
5.1.1 True and Fair View 

In previous years the Operational Director, Finance has been required 
to certify that the accounts “present fairly” the financial position of the 
Council as at 31 March. However, there is now a new requirement for 
the Operational Director, Finance to certify that the accounts present a 
“true and fair view”.  This change has no practical effect on the 
preparation of the accounts, and simply reflects convergence of local 
authority accounting requirements with UK GAAP. 

  
5.1.2 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Schemes 

As part of the transition to adopt IFRS, the 2009/10 SORP requires all 
PFI schemes to be prepared under international standards. As a result, 
the emphasis is now on control of the asset rather than ownership. If 
control lies with the Council then the value of the PFI asset should be 
shown on the Council’s balance sheet. The Council does not currently 
have any assets constructed under PFI arrangements. However, the 
Mersey Gateway and Building Schools for the Future schemes will both 
use PFI arrangements, which will therefore lead to a significant 
increase in the value of fixed assets held on the Council’s Balance 
Sheet in future. 

 
5.1.3 Collection Fund 

Billing authorities for Council Tax and National Non Domestic Rates 
(NNDR) such as Halton Borough Council, are now classified as agents 
of the major precepting authorities and collect income on their behalf. 
Therefore the Council’s accounts must now only reflect the proportion 
of Council Tax that is due to Halton Borough Council, rather than the 
total amount collected.  The major precepting authorities such as 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service and Cheshire Police must also 
reflect their proportion in their accounts.  As all NNDR is collected by 

Page 5



the Council as an agent of the Government, this will be removed from 
the Collection Fund completely. 

 
5.1.4 Employee Remuneration 

In addition to the changes in the 2009/10 SORP, further amendments 
have been introduced by the Government to the disclosure 
requirements for employee remuneration. These are intended to 
improve transparency of reporting of senior officer remuneration in 
public bodies. A breakdown of remuneration details will be disclosed for 
all employees having total remuneration over £50,000 listed by post 
title. Employees with remuneration over £150,000 will be named. The 
numbers of employees with total remuneration over £50,000 will still be 
disclosed but this will now be presented in bands of £5,000 rather than 
£10,000. 

 
5.2 The Council will be required to prepare its statutory Statement of 

Accounts (The Abstract) for the year ended 31 March 2011, on the 
basis of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in 
compliance with the IFRS Accounting Code of Practice (IFRS Code). A 
separate report on the Agenda details progress with the implementation 
of IFRS.  

 
5.3 The Council’s updated accounting policies are presented in Appendix 

1, with the changes for 2009/10 highlighted in bold italics. The 2009/10 
draft Abstract of Accounts will be presented to the Board at its meeting 
on 30th June 2010. 

     
6.0 POLICY AND OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 None. 
 
7.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
7.1 None. 
 
8.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
8.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (2006 amendments) require 

that the Statement of Accounts complies with the SORP.  If the 
Council’s accounts are not compliant then they would be liable to 
qualification by the external auditors.  This would also have a 
significant adverse impact on the Council’s overall Use of Resources 
Assessment. 

  
8.2 These risks are mitigated by ensuring that the SORP requirements are 

reflected within the Council’s accounting policies.  The Council also 
monitors consultations on revisions to the SORP and draws upon 
guidance from the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Council’s external auditors. 

 

Page 6



9.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
9.1 None. 
 
10.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1072 
 
10.1 There are no background papers under the meaning of the Act. 

Page 7



APPENDIX 1 
 

Statement of Accounting Policies 
 

1. General 
 
 The accounts have been prepared in accordance with “The Code of Practice 

on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009 a statement of 
recommended practice”, issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA).  They have been prepared on the historical cost 
conventions, and give a true and fair view of the Council’s transactions and 
financial position. 

 

2. Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
  2(a) Customer and Client Receipts 
 
 Customer and client receipts in the form of sales, fees, charges and rents are 

accrued and accounted for in the period to which they relate. 
 
  2(b) Employee Costs 
 
 The full cost of employees is charged to the account of the period within 

which the employees worked.  Accruals are made for wages earned but 
unpaid and pay awards awaiting settlement at the year end. 

 
  2(c) Capital Receipts Income 
 
 Amounts to be treated as capital receipts are defined by statute and usually 

arise from disposal of an interest in a fixed asset. However, some statutorily 
defined capital receipts do not arise from the disposal of an interest in a fixed 
asset and under the general provisions of the SORP may be income (e.g. the 
repayment of a grant awarded by the authority to acquire a fixed asset 
by the recipient) or a transaction within the Balance Sheet (e.g. the 
repayment of a loan advanced to a third party to acquire a fixed asset).  

 
  2(d) Interest 
 
 Interest payable on external borrowings and interest income is accrued and 

accounted for in the accounts of the period to which it relates on a basis 
which reflects the actual costs and income receivable during the period. 

 
  2(e) Supplies and Services 
 
 Supplies and services are accrued and accounted for during the period in 

which they are consumed or received. Accruals are made for all material 
sums unpaid at year end for goods or services received or works completed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



 

3. Acquired/Discontinued Operations 
 
   Income and expenditure directly related to either acquired or discontinued 

operations will be shown separately on the face of the Income and 
Expenditure Account under the heading of acquired/discontinued operations. 
Any liabilities in respect of discontinued operations should be disclosed 
separately in the notes to the Balance Sheet. 

 

4. Area Based Grants 
 
 ABG is a non-ringfenced general grant which replaced Local Area 

Agreement Grant from 2008/09. No conditions on use is imposed as 
part of the grant determination ensuring full local control over how 
funding can be used. This means that, unlike LAA grant, its use is not 
restricted to supporting the achievements of LAA targets. ABG is 
included in the income and expenditure account within the General 
Government Grants figure.   

 
5. Equal Pay Claims 
 
 Following the implementation of the Single Status Agreement the 

Council has received a number of claims for equal pay. An earmarked 
reserve has been made for the future cost. 

 
 As per note 21 a provision will be created for the Equal Pay 

Claims when it is recognised there will be a transfer of economic 
benefits and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation.  

 

6. Business Improvement District Schemes 
 
 Business Improvement District (BID) projects for the benefit of a particular 

area are financed (in whole or in part) by a BID levy paid by the non-domestic 
ratepayers, or a class of such ratepayers, in the BID area.  There are two key 
participants, the billing authority for the area and the BID Body.  What 
determines the appropriate accounting treatment for the billing authority is 
whether it acts as the principal or agent.  If the billing authority acts as 
principal, the income received and expenditure incurred by the billing 
authority is included in the Net Cost of Services under the appropriate service 
heads.  Halton acts as an agent for two BID projects (Halebank and 
Astmoor), the following amounts are recognised in the Income and 
Expenditure Account: 

 

• A contribution made by HBC to the BID project (i.e. grant-in-aid), 
which is shown as service expenditure under the relevant service in 
the Income and Expenditure Account; 

 

• BID levy collection costs and associated (reimbursed) income, which 
is shown in Net Cost of Services under the relevant service in the 
Income and Expenditure Account; 

 

Page 9



• Income from services supplied by HBC to the BID project on a paid 
basis, which is accounted for as a trading activity as part of Net 
Operating Costs in the Income and Expenditure Account.  However, 
where the service supplied for charge is a function of the Council, e.g. 
a planning application, it is accounted for in the same way as other 
income of that function. 

 
 The 2009 SORP removed the requirement to publish the BID Revenue 

account within the notes to the accounts. 
    

7. Contingent Assets 
 
 Contingent assets are not recognised in the accounting statements, they are 

disclosed by way of notes if the inflow of a receipt or an economic benefit is 
probable. The note will indicate the nature of the contingent asset and 
estimate its financial effect. 

 

8. Contingent Liabilities 
 
 Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the accounting statements.  They 

are disclosed by way of the notes to the accounts (see notes to the core 
financial statements) if there is a possible obligation which may require a 
payment or transfer of economic benefits. For each class of contingent 
liability the Council discloses the nature of the contingency, a brief 
description, an estimate of its financial effect, an indication of the 
uncertainties relating to the amount or timing of any outflow and the 
possibility of any reimbursement.  

 

9. Council Tax Income 
 

  9(a) The Collection Fund 
 

The Council is required by statute to maintain a separate fund for the 
collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of Council Tax 
and National Non-Domestic Rates. The funds key features relevant to 
accounting for council tax in the core financial statements are: 

 

• In its capacity as a billing authority the council acts as an agent: 
it collects Council tax income on behalf of the major preceptors 
and itself. 

 

• While the Council Tax income for the year credited to the 
Collection Fund is the accrued income for the year, regulations 
determine when it should be released from the Collection Fund 
and transferred to the General Fund. The amount credited to the 
General Fund under statute is the Councils demand for the year 
plus the Councils share of the surplus (or less its share of the 
deficit) on the Collection Fund for the year. 

 

 9(b) Accounting for Council Tax in the Core Financial Statements 
 

The Council Tax included in the Income and Expenditure Account for 
the year is the accrued income for the year. 

 

Page 10



The difference between the income included in the Income and 
Expenditure Account and the amount required to be credited to the 
General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and 
included as a reconciling item in the Statement in movement on the 
General Fund Balance. 

 
The Councils Cash Flow Statement includes in ‘Revenue Activities’ 
cash flows only its share of Council Tax net cash collected from the 
Council Tax debtors in the year; and the amount included for precepts 
shall exclude amounts paid to major preceptors. 

 
 
 

  9(c) Prior Year Adjustment 
 
 The change of accounting policy for Council Tax requires a prior year 

adjustment to the 2008/09 corresponding amounts. The prior year 
adjustments included are as per points 9(d) to 9(f). 

 

9(d) Income and Expenditure Account and Statement of Movement on 
the General Fund Balance 

 
 The Council Tax Income credited to the Income and Expenditure 

account is the accrued amount for 2008/09. In addition, the Statement of 
movement on the General Fund Balance is re-stated accordingly, with 
the change in the Income and Expenditure Account for the year being 
exactly matched by the inclusion of an additional reconciling item in 
respect of the transfer to or from the Collection Fund Adjustment 
Account. 

 

9(e) Balance Sheet 
 
 In the Council’s re-stated Balance Sheet for 2008/09, the part of the 

Council Tax debtor and creditor balances and impairment allowance for 
doubtful debts attributable to major preceptors are derecognised. 

 
 The Councils recognises a creditor in its re-stated 2008/09 Balance 

Sheet for cash collected from taxpayers on behalf of major preceptors 
but not yet paid to them, or a debtor for cash paid to major preceptors 
in advance of it receiving the cash from Council Tax debtors/creditors. 

 

9(f) Cash Flow Statement 
 
 The Council’s 2008/09 Cash Flow Statement has been restated to 

exclude from Revenue Activities: 
 

• Major Preceptor’s precept payments and cash paid to or 
received from major preceptors in respect of the previous years 
Collection fund Surplus or Deficit. 

 

• The major preceptor’s share of the net cash received from 
Council Tax debtors in the year. 

 

Page 11



The Cash Flow statement includes only the Councils own share of 
Council Tax debtors or creditors net cash received in the year. 
 

9(g) Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses 
 
 The changes made in 9a to 9f obviate the need to show collection fund 

items in the statement. 
 

10. Events After the Balance Sheet Date  
 

 Where a material post balance sheet event occurs, an appropriate change 
will be included in the Statement of Accounts.  A disclosure will state the 
nature of the event and an estimate of the financial effect. 

 
 

11. Exceptional Items, Extraordinary Items and 
 Prior Year Adjustments 
 
 All of the above will be included in the cost of services or on the face of the 

Income and Expenditure account if a degree of prominence is necessary to 
give a fair presentation of the accounts.  Additional notes will be provided if 
necessary. 

 

12. Financial Instruments 
 

 The council invests and borrows money as part of its day to day business and 
Treasury Management Strategy. It is required to present on the balance sheet 
at fair value its outstanding financial obligations and assets in relation to these 
transactions.  

 
The Council has used Sector Treasury Services Limited to provide 
independent valuations of the position at the period end.  

 
Sector used the Net Present Value valuation technique to value the 
borrowings. The discount rate used within the calculation was the Public 
Works Loans Board new borrowing rate. The fair value calculations also 
included accrued interest. 
 
The charge and credit to the Income and Expenditure account is based on the 
accruals concept. 

 
13. Foreign Currency Translation 
 
 Income and expenditure arising from transactions denominated in a foreign 

currency are translated into £ sterling at the exchange rate in operation at the 
date of the transaction. 

 

14. Government Grants 
 
 Revenue grants are accounted for on an accruals basis, with the credit 

shown in the appropriate revenue account.  Whatever their basis of payment, 
revenue grants are matched with the expenditure to which they relate. 

 

Page 12



 For capital grants where acquisition is financed either wholly or in part by a 
government grant or non-government contribution, the amount of grant or 
contribution is credited initially to government grants – deferred account.  
Amounts are written off in the service revenue account over the useful life of 
the asset to match the depreciation of the asset to which it relates.  

 
15. Intangible Assets 
 
 These are regularly included on Balance Sheets and cover, in the main, 

Goodwill and Research and Development Expenditure, neither of which are 
likely items for a Council.  A more likely cost would be, for example, the 
capitalisation of software licences.  The assets would be amortised out of the 
Balance Sheet over its economic life, with due recourse to disposal and/or 
impairment, and charges to revenue. 

 

16. Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme 
 
 The Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme, like certain Emission Rights 

schemes, is a ‘cap and trade’ scheme, which allocates tradable landfill 
allowances to each Waste Disposal Authority (WDA) up to the amount of the 
WDA’s ‘cap’.  There is at present no UK Financial Reporting Standard or 
Urgent Issues Task Force (UITF) Abstract covering the cap and trade 
schemes. 

 
 However, the Council has adopted the proposed UITF Abstract Emission 

Rights, and as such the Landfill Allowances Trading Scheme (LATS) gives 
rise to: 

 

• an asset for allowances held 
 

• LATS grant income; and 
 

• a liability for actual Biodegradable Municipal Waste (BMW) landfill 
usage. 

 
 Allowances, whether allocated by DEFRA or purchased from another WDA, 

have been recognised as assets and classified as current assets.  They are 
measured initially at their fair value. 

 
 Landfill allowances are issued free by DEFRA.  Accordingly, the grant is 

initially recognised as deferred income in the Balance Sheet and 
subsequently recognised as income on a systematic basis over the 
compliance year for which the allowances were allocated. 

 
 As landfill is used, a liability is recognised for actual BMW landfill usage.  The 

liability is discharged by using allowances to meet the liability, paying a cash 
penalty to DEFRA or a combination of both.  Any liability is measured at the 
best estimate of the expenditure required to meet the obligation at the 
Balance Sheet date. 

 
 Under proposed UITF Abstract Emission Rights, two accounting policies for 

remeasuring the value of landfill allowances after initial recognition are 
permitted: 

 

Page 13



• the lower of cost and net realisable value; and 
 

• revaluation to market value. 
 
 The Council has adopted a ‘lower of cost and net realisable value’ accounting 

policy. 
 

17. Leases 
 
  17(a) Finance Leases 
 
 Rental payments under finance leases are apportioned between the finance 

charge and the reduction of the outstanding obligation, with the finance 
charge being allocated and charged to revenue over the term of the lease.  
Any receipts are subject to the same test, whereby the writing down of the 
debtor’s obligation will be a capital receipt. 

 
17(b) Operating Leases 
 
 Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to revenue on a straight 

line basis over the life of the lease.  Receipts are treated as revenue income. 
 

18. National Non Domestic Rates 
 

The Council collects NNDR under what is in substance an agency 
agreement with the Government. 

 
NNDR income is not income of the Council and is not included in the 
Income and Expenditure Account; the exception is the cost of 
collection allowance which is included.  

 
NNDR debtor and creditor balances with taxpayers are not recognised 
in the Balance Sheet, whereas cash collected and not yet paid over to 
the Government will be recognised in the Balance Sheet as a creditor. 
 
Cash collected from NNDR taxpayers is not included in the Cash Flow 
Statement as a cash inflow or outflow with the exception of the cost of 
collection allowance which is included.  

 

19. Overheads 
 
 Charges or apportionments covering all support service costs are made to all 

services, trading undertakings and capital accounts.  The costs are allocated 
based on time allocation for staff, floor area for administrative buildings and 
usage for computers and telephones.  

 
The costs of the Corporate and Democratic Core and non-distributed costs 
as defined by CIPFA’s Best Value Accounting Code of Practice are allocated 
to separate objective expenditure heads and are not apportioned to other 
divisions of service.  These items are clearly disclosed in the Income and 
Expenditure Account. 

 
 
 

Page 14



20. Pension Costs 
 
 General 
 
 The cost of providing pensions for employees is charged in accordance with 

the requirements of FRS17 Retirement Benefits subject to the interpretation 
set out in the Statement of Recommended Practice governing the pension 
schemes.  The Council pays an employer’s contribution to the Cheshire 
Pension Fund and the Teachers’ Pension Agency. 
 

 Pensions Reserve 
 
 Where there is a difference between the amount charged to the Income and 

Expenditure Account in the year and the amount payable to the pension 
funds, that sum is taken to the Pension Reserve.  This additional debit or 
credit to the services is shown as a reconciling item in the Statement of 
Movement on the General Fund. 

 
Classification of Schemes 

 
 Defined Benefit Schemes 
 
 Accounting policies set out as below apply in respect of pension costs arising 

from the Local Government Pension Scheme and unfunded discretionary 
benefits paid (irrespective of the scheme to which it relates): 

 
(i) the attributable assets of each Scheme are measured at their fair 

value at the Balance Sheet date.  Scheme assets include current 
assets as well as investments.  Any liabilities, such as accrued 
expenses are deducted.  The attributable scheme liabilities are 
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method.  The 
Scheme liabilities comprise: 

 
(a) any benefits promised under the formal terms of the Scheme, 

and 
 
(b) any constructive obligations for further benefits where a public 

statement or past practice by the Council created a valid 
expectation in the employees that such benefits will be 
granted. 

 
(ii) the surplus/deficit in a Scheme is the excess/shortfall of the value of 

assets in the Scheme over/below the present value of the Scheme 
liabilities.  The Council recognises assets to the extent that it is able to 
recover a surplus either through reduced contributions in the future or 
through refunds from the Scheme.  The Council recognises a liability 
to the extent that it reflects its legal or constructive obligation; 

 
(iii) any unpaid contributions to the scheme are presented in the Balance 

Sheet as a creditor due within one year; 
 

(iv) the change in the defined benefit asset or liability (other than that 
arising from contributions to the Scheme) is analysed into the 
following components: 

Page 15



 
(a) Periodic Costs 
 

1. Current Service Cost - the increase in liabilities as result of years of 
service earned this year – allocated in the Income & Expenditure 
Account to the revenue accounts of services to which the 
employees worked. 

 
2. Interest Cost - the expected increase in the present value of 

liabilities during the year as they move one year closer to being paid 
– debited to Net Operating Expenditure in the Income and 
Expenditure Account. 

 
3. Expected Return on Assets - the annual investment return on the 

fund assets attributable to the council, based on an average of the 
expected long-term return – credited to Net Operating Expenditure 
in the Income and Expenditure Account. 

 
4. Actuarial Gains and Losses - changes in the net pensions liability 

that arise because events have not coincided with assumptions 
made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have 
updated their assumptions – debited to the Statement of Total 
Recognised Gains and Losses. 

 
5. Contributions paid to the Cheshire pension Fund – cash paid as 

employer’s contributions to the pension fund. 
 
(b) Non-periodic Costs 
 

1. Past Service Costs - the increase in liabilities arising from current 
year decisions whose effect relates to years of service earned in 
earlier years – debited to the Net Cost of Services in the Income 
and Expenditure Account as part of Non Distributed Costs. 

 
2. Gains and Losses on Settlements and Curtailments - the result of 

actions to relieve the council of liabilities or events that reduce the 
expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees, debited 
to the Net Cost of Services in the Income and Expenditure Account 
as part of Non Distributed Costs. 

 
(v) the current service cost is included within the Net Cost of Services.  

Both the interest and the expected return on assets are included 
within Net Operating Expenditure.  Actuarial gains and losses arising 
from any new valuation and from updating the latest actuarial 
valuation to reflect conditions at the Balance Sheet date are 
recognised in the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses 
for the period; 

 
(vi) past service costs are recognised in Net Cost of Services on a 

straight-line basis over the period in which the benefits vest.  To the 
extent that the benefits vest immediately, the past service cost is 
recognised immediately; 

 
 (vii) losses arising on a settlement or curtailment not allowed in actuarial 

assumptions are measured at the date on which the Council becomes 

Page 16



demonstrably committed to the transaction and recognised in the Net 
Cost of Services at that date.  Gains arising on a settlement or 
curtailment not allowed for in the actuarial assumptions are measured 
at the date on which all parties whose consent is required are 
irrevocably committed to the transaction and are recognised in the 
Net Cost of Services at that date. 

 
Defined Contribution Schemes 

 
 Whilst meeting the definition of a defined benefit pension scheme, the 

Teachers’ Pension Scheme, as administered by the DCSF, needs to be 
accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme since the Council is 
unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities in the 
Scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis. 

 
 As a result, the pensions cost reported for the year is equal to the 

contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.  The cost is 
recognised in the Net Cost of Services.  An asset or liability is recognised 
within the Net Cost of Services only to the extent to which there are prepaid 
or outstanding contributions at the Balance Sheet date. 

 

21. Provisions 
 
 The Council set aside provisions for any liabilities of uncertain timing or amount 

that have been incurred.  Provisions are reviewed annually and adjusted to reflect 
the current best estimate.  Provisions are created by a charge to a service and as 
such appear in the Income and Expenditure Account in the Net Cost of Services.  
(See Notes to the core Financial Statements). 

 
Provisions are charged to the appropriate revenue account; when payments for 
expenditure are incurred to which the provision relates they are charged direct to 
the provision.  

 
 Provisions are required to be recognised when there is a present obligation as a 

result of a past event or it is possible that a transfer of economic benefit will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation. 

 

22. Provisions for Bad and Doubtful Debts 
 
 The value of debtors is adjusted for doubtful debts whilst known uncollectable 

debt is written-off. 
 

23. Repurchase of Borrowing 
 
 Gains or losses arising on the repurchase or early settlement are charged in 

the Income and Expenditure Account in the period during which the 
repurchase is made.  If the repurchase was coupled with refinancing or 
restructuring, gains or losses are charged over the life of the replacement 
loan. 

 
 
 
 

Page 17



24. Reserves 
 
 The Council maintains certain reserves to meet general, rather than specific, 

future expenditure.  Reserves are set up by a charge against the 
appropriation section of the Income and Expenditure Account.  Reserves 
include earmarked reserves set aside for specific policy purposes and 
balances which represent resources set aside for general contingencies and 
cashflow management.  Capital reserves are not available for revenue 
purposes.  The requirement of FRS17 has meant the introduction of a 
Pension Reserve onto the Balance Sheet offset by a Pension Asset/Liability 
Account. The Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses brings 
together movement on all reserves divided into revenue and capital.  Future 
expenditure met by reserve will go through the net cost of services and the 
offsetting credit through the Statement of Movement on the General Fund. 

 

25. Revenue Expenditure Funded From Capital under Statute 
 
 Legislation allows some expenditure to be classified as capital for funding 

purposes when it does not result in the expenditure being carried on the 
Balance Sheet as a fixed asset. Such expenditure is charged to the Income 
and Expenditure account in accordance with the general provisions of the 
SORP.   

 

26. Stocks 
 
 Stocks and stores held by the Council at the year end are included in the 

accounts on the basis of lower of cost or net realisable value.   
 

27. Tangible Fixed Assets 
 
  27(a) Recognition 
 
 Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of a tangible fixed 

asset is capitalised on an accruals basis.  Expenditure is only capitalised 
when it adds to or extends, and not merely maintains the value of an existing 
asset. 

 
 This will include the laying out and reclamation of land, enhancement or 

replacement of roads/buildings as well as the installation/replacement of 
plant/machinery. 

 
  27(b) Measurement 
 
 All assets are initially measured at cost, but only the costs that are directly 

attributable to bringing the asset into working condition for its intended use. 
Whilst infrastructure assets and community assets remain in the balance 
sheet at historical costs net of depreciation, other assets will be subject to 
periodic revaluation of no more than five years using the appropriate method 
for that class of asset.  In the absence of historical information regarding the 
cost of acquisition or construction of various community assets, they have 
been reclassified and given a zero valuation from 1st April 2005.  The Council 
operates a de-minimus level of £35,000 (Land & Buildings only), and a 
qualified valuer certifies the valuation. 

 

Page 18



  27(c) Impairment 
 
 Because the assets are only revalued periodically, the Council’s valuer 

prepares annually a certificate confirming he has reviewed the assets for 
impairment.  If it has been established that there has been impairment to an 
asset, then each case will be reviewed to decide if a debit should be made to 
the relevant service’s total cost. 

 
  27(d) Accounting for Disposals of Tangible Fixed Assets 
 
 Receipts from the disposal of fixed assets greater than £10,000 are credited 

to the usable capital receipts reserve on an accruals basis.   
 

(i) Income and Expenditure Account 
 
 The gain or loss of a tangible asset is the amount by which the 

disposal proceeds are more (gain) or less (loss) than the carrying 
amount of the fixed asset.  With the entries being debit cash/debtors 
and credit the Income and Expenditure Account with the disposal 
proceeds and credit the fixed asset account and debit the Income and 
Expenditure Account with the carrying amount of the tangible fixed 
asset. 

 
(ii) Statement of Movement in the General Fund 
 
 In order to comply with statutory/proper practices restrictions on the 

use of capital receipts: 
 

• Expenditure Account, the General Fund should be debited (in 
the case of a gain) or credited (in the case of a loss) with the 
amount equal to the gain or loss on disposal of the tangible 
fixed asset, with the double entries being: 

 
–  a credit to the Usable Capital Receipts Reserve of an 

amount equal to the disposal proceeds; 
 
–  a debit to the fixed Capital Adjustment Account of an 

amount equal to the carrying amount of the fixed asset 
disposal. 

 
 The gain or loss on disposal of the tangible fixed asset should be a 

reconciling item in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund. 
If the asset disposed of was carried at current value, in addition to the 
above entries the balance on the Revaluation Reserve in respect of 
asset disposals is written off the Capital Adjustment Account. 

 
 The proportion that is required to be paid over to Central Government 

as a ‘housing pooled capital receipt’ should be charged in the Net 
Operating Cost Section of the Income and Expenditure Account and 
the same amount appropriated from Usable Capital Receipts Reserve 
and credited to the General Fund. 

 
 
 

Page 19



  27(e) Depreciation 
 
 Depreciation is provided for on all fixed assets with a finite useful life.  The 

provision for depreciation is calculated by allocating the cost less any 
estimated residual value of the asset over its useful life.  The useful lives of 
assets are estimated on a realistic basis and reviewed on a regular basis and 
where necessary revised.  Depreciation charges usually commence in the 
year after acquisition.  In exceptional circumstances, for example if a 
particularly expensive asset is acquired which has a short life expectancy, 
then a charge may be levied in the year of acquisition to ensure the charge to 
the service is more in line with the consumption of the asset.  In the case of 
infrastructure assets, the depreciation charge is calculated over a straight line 
15 year period. 

 
  27(f) Charges to the Income and Expenditure Account and STRGL 
 
 As defined in CIPFA’s Best Value Accounting Code of Practice, each service 

is charged with a capital charge for the consumption of all fixed assets used 
in the provision of the service.  The charge is the annual provision for 
depreciation or impairment.   

 
Finance costs (interest payable) are a direct charge to Net Operating Costs;  
whilst repairs and maintenance are charged to the appropriate service 
revenue account. 
 

27(g) Revaluations 
 
 Assets are subject to an annual impairment check.  A proportion of the assets 

will be subject to revaluation each year to allow for the workload of 
revaluation to be more evenly spread and the balance sheet to be more 
accurate.  Each asset will be revalued on a 5 year cycle. 

 
 Gains and losses resulting from revaluations are accounted for as follows. 

The Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses should be: 
 

• Credited with revaluation gains, except to the extent that they reverse 
previous revaluation losses (after allowing for depreciation) on the same 
assets that were charged to the Income and Expenditure Account. 

• Debited with revaluation losses not associated with an impairment related 
to a clear consumption of economic benefit up to the balance on the 
Revaluation Reserve in respect of that asset. 

 
The Income and Expenditure Account should be: 
 

• Credited with any revaluation gains that reverse revaluation losses (after 
allowing for depreciation) on the same assets that were charged to 
services. 

• Debited with revaluation losses associated with an impairment related to 
a clear consumption of economic benefit. 

• Debited with revaluation losses not associated with a clear consumption 
of economic benefit in excess of the balance on the Revaluation Reserve 
in respect of that asset (ie in excess of the amount allowed to be debited 
to the STRGL).   

   

Page 20



28. Value Added Tax 
 
 VAT is included in income and expenditure accounts, whether of a capital or 

revenue nature, only to the extent that it is irrecoverable. 

 
 
 

Page 21



REPORT TO: Business Efficiency Board 
 
DATE: 26 May 2010 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Operational Director – Finance 
 
SUBJECT: Progress with the Implementation of 

International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) 

 
WARD(S): Borough-wide 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To provide the Board with an update of progress with the 

implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDED: That the report be noted. 

 
3.0 BACKGROUND 
  
3.1 The Council will be required to prepare its Statement of Accounts (The 

Abstract) for the year ended 31 March 2011, on the basis of 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in compliance with 
the IFRS Accounting Code of Practice (IFRS Code).  

 
3.2 In order to prepare the 2010/11 year-end accounts on this basis, it is 

necessary to restate the 2009/10 accounts in order to provide 
comparative figures and also to restate the 2008/09 balance sheet to 
provide the opening balances. 

 
3.3 It will also be necessary to ensure that a number of the Council’s 

systems are able to provide adequate financial and non-financial 
information to meet the requirements of IFRS. 

 
3.4 The implications of compliance with IFRS are wide-ranging, both 

financial and non-financial, and will affect all areas of the Council. An 
IFRS specialist was commissioned to undertake a baseline review of 
the Council’s current practices and to compare these with the 
requirements of IFRS, which is now being used as the basis for the 
implementation project. 

 
4.0 PROGRESS WITH KEY AREAS OF IFRS WORK 
 
4.1 A number of strands of IFRS work are currently underway, the key 

areas of which are presented below along with details of progress. 
 
 
  

Agenda Item 5Page 22



 
Preparation of 2009/10 Accounts 

4.2 The year-end accounts for 2009/10 are currently being prepared on the 

basis of UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (UKGAAP) and 

in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP). 

This will be the final year that they will be prepared on this basis as the 

2010/11 accounts will be prepared on an IFRS basis.  

  
4.3 The SORP this year includes certain requirements which have been 

introduced as preparation for full compliance with IFRS next year-end. 
These also build upon changes introduced last year, such as 
compliance with new accounting standards in respect of financial 
instruments. The draft Abstract of Accounts prepared on this basis will 
be presented to the Board on 30th June 2010.  

 
Restatement of the 2009/10 Accounts 

4.4 Once the 2009/10 Abstract of Accounts has been prepared, the 
accounts will then be restated onto an IFRS basis. In order to achieve 
this it will be necessary to restate the 2009/10 opening balances (ie. 
the closing balances from 2008/09) and the closing balances from 
2009/10, onto an IFRS basis. This must be done in order to provide the 
starting point for preparation of the 2010/11 year-end accounts, which 
will be on a full IFRS basis.  

  
4.5 It is intended to restate the 2009/10 accounts by 31st October 2010. In 

order to undertake the restatement a number of key areas of IFRS 
must first be completed, including reviewing the accounting treatment 
of leases, employee benefits and group accounts. 

 
Accounting Treatment of Leases 

4.6 The most significant challenge to the Council from the implementation 
of IFRS is in respect of identifying and reviewing the accounting 
treatment of leases or similar contract arrangements. Work is currently 
on-going to establish a complete and accurate register of all leases and 
similar contracts, including those relating to schools. This is necessary 
to enable the agreements to be reviewed as the definitions of finance 
and operating leases have been amended under IFRS, which may 
have an impact in terms of their accounting treatment. This includes 
where the Council is both lessee and lessor. 

  
4.7 In terms of property related leases, approximately 550 leases have 

been identified. Of these around 100 are currently being reviewed in 
terms of their categorisation and accounting treatment, whilst the 
remainder can be clearly categorised and will not require any 
accounting adjustments. 

  
4.8 Work is currently underway with the assistance of all Directorates to 

identify all other leases such as those in respect of; office equipment; 

Page 23



vehicles, plant and equipment, catering equipment; printing equipment; 
and ICT equipment. 

 
 
4.9 Discussions are to be held with a sample of schools during the 

Summer term regarding the types of lease and similar contract 
arrangements which they may hold. Thereafter, all schools will be 
asked to provide information in respect of their arrangements, using 
examples identified from the sample exercise. 

  
4.10 As the inventory of lease and similar contract arrangements is 

established, each arrangement will be reviewed to establish whether 
they are deemed finance or operating leases in accordance with the 
IFRS Code of Practice. The results will be discussed with the Audit 
Commission in order to agree a shared understanding. 

 
4.11 A key feature of the IFRS requirements in respect of lease and similar 

contract arrangements is in terms of where the arrangements were 
previously deemed operating leases and are now deemed finance 
leases. In these instances the accounting arrangements will need to be 
changed “retrospectively” to the commencement of the lease, as part of 
the restatement of the 2009/10 accounts. 

 
Employee Benefits 

4.12 The IFRS Code of Practice requires that the total amount of annual 
leave and flexible working hours carried forward by staff, including 
teachers, at 31st March each year is identified, costed and a provision 
made in the accounts. This is intended to reflect the total cost of the 
time owed by the Council to the individuals. 

  
4.13 All managers across the Council are currently providing details of the 

annual leave carried forward by their staff at 31st March 2009 and 
2010, in order to provide the comparative figures required for 
restatement of the 2009/10 accounts. Details of flexible working hour 
balances as at 31st March in each year have been identified from the 
corporate time recording system. 

 
4.14 As part of the discussions to be held with schools referred to in 

paragraph 4.9 above regarding leases, they will also be asked to 
provide annual leave information in respect of their non-teaching staff. 

 
4.15 Information in respect of all teaching staff has been provided by Human 

Resources, which will enable a desktop calculation of annual leave 
carry forward to be undertaken, based on standard term-times. 

 
4.16 This information regarding employee benefits will then be costed and 

the necessary provision made within the restated 2009/10 accounts. 
 

Group Accounts 

Page 24



4.17 The Council’s Group Accounts include the consolidation of the 
accounts of Halton Transport Limited, whose accounts are not required 
to be prepared on an IFRS basis. Discussions have therefore been 
held with their accountants, to enable information to be provided on an 
IFRS basis as part of the restatement of the Council’s 09/10 Group 
Accounts. 

 
Asset Valuation 

4.18 The bases used for valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment will 
change significantly under the IFRS Code of Practice. From 2010/11 
onwards any property revaluations will require separate valuations for 
major “components” which may have a significantly different lifespan 
eg. lifts, roofs, windows, walls, boilers. The reason for this is in order to 
depreciate the asset components over those differing life spans. There 
is however, no requirement to make any retrospective accounting 
adjustments in respect of asset valuations.          

 
4.19 During 2009/10 Property Services have already begun to identify and 

undertake valuations on a component basis in anticipation of the 
forthcoming IFRS requirements, as part of the normal five year rolling 
revaluation process (whereby one fifth of the Council’s assets are 
revalued each year). 

 
Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Schemes and Service Concessions 

4.20 The accounting treatment of Private Finance Initiative (PFI) schemes 

will change significantly with the introduction of IFRS. PFI schemes 

which had previously been treated as “off balance sheet” will now be 

included within the Council’s balance sheet. The Council does not 

currently operate any PFI schemes, however, it will enter into PFI 

arrangements in future through Building Schools for the Future and 

Mersey Gateway. Therefore the IFRS requirements for those schemes 

is being considered as part of those projects. 

   
4.21 The IFRS Code of Practice does however require similar accounting 

treatment to be made for contractual agreements which are termed 
Service Concessions, which are similar in nature to PFI arrangements. 
Work is currently underway to identify whether the Council has any 
agreements which would fall within the definition of Service 
Concessions and if so the accounting treatment will then be reviewed. 

 
Disclosure Notes 

4.22 There are far greater volumes of financial and non-financial disclosure 
notes required under IFRS. Consideration is currently being given to 
what additional information will need to be captured and whether the 
Council’s existing systems are capable of providing this during 
2010/11. In addition any requirements for previous comparative year 
information are also being considered. 

 

Page 25



5.0 MONITORING AND REPORTING 
 

5.1 The amount of work required over the coming year to ensure IFRS 

compliance will be very significant and will impact upon workloads 

across the Council. A cross-Directorate IFRS Working Group is 

overseeing the transition to IFRS and will continue to take forward the 

key actions required to ensure full compliance with the IFRS Code of 

Practice. 

  

5.2 Regular progress meetings will continue to be held with the Audit 

Commission, particularly around the restatement of the 2009/10 

accounts and to agree a shared undertstanding of approach in 

particular areas. 

 

5.3 A further progress report regarding the implementation of IFRS will be 

presented to the Board on 10th November 2010. 

 

6.0 POLICY AND OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 None. 
 
7.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
7.1 There are no direct implications. 
 
8.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
8.1 If the transitional requirements for the implemention of the IFRS regime 

are not met, the Council will fail to meet its statutory obligations in 

terms of the accounting requirements for the 2010/11 final accounts. As 

a result this would directly impact upon the Council’s Use of Resources 

score and thereby the Comprehensive Area Assessment. 

8.2 The significant increases in workload anticipated over the transitional 

period may require additional resources to complete the transition, 

whilst ensuring the Council’s other activities are properly supported. 

9.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
9.1 None. 
 
10.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1072 
 
10.1 There are no background papers under the meaning of the Act. 
 

Page 26



Agenda Item 6Page 27
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



P
a
g
e
 3

1
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 3

3
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 3

5
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 3

8
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 4

0
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 4

2
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 4

4
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 4

7
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 4

9
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 5

2
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 5

7
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 6

0
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 6

3
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 6

6
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 7

0
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 7

3
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 7

6
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 7

8
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 8

1
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 8

3
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 8

8
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 9

2
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



Agenda Item 7Page 93
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	3 Declarations of Interest by Officers
	4 Accounting Policies for the 2009/10 Abstract of Accounts
	5 Progress with Implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
	6 Internal Audit Progress Report - Quarter 4 (2009/10)
	app01 - housing benefits
	app02 - main accounting system
	app03 - treasury management
	app04 - concessionary travel
	app05 - sundry debtors
	app06 - payroll
	app07 - creditors
	app08 - cheque control
	app09 - accounting for fixed assets
	app10 - brookfields
	app11 - wade deacon
	app12 - astmoor primary
	app13 - weston point
	app14 - hallwood park primary
	app15 - inglefield
	app16 - agency staff contract
	app17 - lpsa
	app18 - drug action team
	app19 - payments to care providers
	app20 - ditton primary
	app21 - client financial assessments
	app22 - follow up audits

	7 Internal Audit Annual Report - 2009/10

